
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 13 March 2018 at 6.30 p.m., Room C1, 1st Floor, Town Hall, 
Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London, E14 2BG

This meeting is open to the public to attend. 
Members: 
Chair: Councillor Dave Chesterton
Vice Chair: Councillor Clare Harrisson Scrutiny Lead for Health, Adults & Community

Councillor Danny Hassell Scrutiny Lead for Children's Services
Councillor Muhammad Ansar Mustaquim
Councillor Oliur Rahman
Councillor Rabina Khan
Councillor Ayas Miah Scrutiny Lead for Governance
Councillor Helal Uddin Scrutiny Lead for Place
Councillor Andrew Wood Scrutiny Lead for Resources

Co-opted Members: 
Shabbir Chowdhury Parent Governors
Joanna Hannan Representative of Diocese of Westminster
Asad M Jaman Muslim Faith Community
Fatiha Kassouri Parent Governors
Dr Phillip Rice Church of England Representative
Christine Trumper Parent Governors

Deputies:
[The quorum for this body is 3 voting Members]
Contact for further enquiries:
David Knight, Democratic Services
1st Floor, Town Hall, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, 
London, E14 2BG
Tel: 020 7364 4878
E-mail: david.knight@towerhamlets.gov.uk
Web: http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee

Scan this code for 
the electronic 
agenda:

Page 1



Public Information
Attendance at meetings.
The public are welcome to attend meetings of the Committee. However seating is limited and 
offered on a first come first served basis. 

Audio/Visual recording of meetings.
Should you wish to film the meeting, please contact the Committee Officer shown on the 
agenda front page.

Mobile telephones
Please switch your mobile telephone on to silent mode whilst in the meeting. 

Access information for the Town Hall, Mulberry Place.     

Bus: Routes: D3, D6, D7, D8, 15, 108, and115 all stop 
near the Town Hall. 
Docklands Light Railway: Nearest stations are East 
India: Head across the bridge and then through 
complex to the Town Hall, Mulberry Place 
Blackwall station. Across the bus station then turn 
right to the back of the Town Hall complex, through 
the gates and archway to the Town Hall. 
Tube: The closest tube stations are Canning Town 
and Canary Wharf 
Car Parking: There is limited visitor pay and display 
parking at the Town Hall (free from 6pm)

If you are viewing this on line:(http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/content_pages/contact_us.aspx) 
Meeting access/special requirements. 
The Town Hall is accessible to people with special needs. There are accessible toilets, lifts to 
venues. Disabled parking bays and an induction loop system for people with hearing difficulties 
are available.  Documents can be made available in large print, Braille or audio version. For 
further information, contact the Officer shown on the front of the agenda 

Fire alarm
If the fire alarm sounds please leave the building immediately by the nearest available fire exit 
without deviating to collect belongings. Fire wardens will direct you to the exits and to the fire 
assembly point. If you are unable to use the stairs, a member of staff will direct you to a safe 
area. The meeting will reconvene if it is safe to do so, otherwise it will stand adjourned.
Electronic agendas reports and minutes.
Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be 
found on our website from day of publication.  

To access this, click www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee and search for
the relevant committee and meeting date.
Agendas are available at the Town Hall, Libraries, Idea Centres and One 
Stop Shops and on the Mod.Gov, iPad and Android apps.  

QR code for 
smart phone 
users.

Page 2



SECTION ONE WARD PAGE 
NUMBER(S)

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

To receive any apologies for absence.

2. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTEREST 

7 - 10

To note any declarations of interest made by Members, 
including those restricting Members from voting on the 
questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Interim 
Monitoring Officer.

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES 

To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the unrestricted minutes 
of the following meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee

3 .1 24th January, 2018  

3 .2 22nd February, 2018  

4. REQUESTS TO SUBMIT PETITIONS 

To receive any petitions (to be notified at the meeting).

5. OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE QUERY 
AND ACTION LOG 2016/17 

6. UNRESTRICTED REPORTS 'CALLED IN' 

No decisions of the Mayor in Cabinet 27th February, 2018 
in respect of unrestricted reports on the agenda were 
‘called in’.

7. SCRUTINY SPOTLIGHT 

7 .1 Mayor John Biggs  

7 .2 Councillor Denise Jones - Cabinet Member for Adults, 

Page 3



Health and Community Services  

8. UNRESTRICTED REPORTS FOR 
CONSIDERATION 

9. BREXIT IMPACT ON THE COUNCIL SCRUTINY 
CHALLENGE REPORT 

11 - 52

10. VERBAL UPDATES FROM SCRUTINY LEADS 

(Time allocated – 5 minutes each)

11. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF UNRESTRICTED 
CABINET PAPERS 

To consider and agree pre-decision scrutiny 
questions/comments to be presented to Cabinet.  With 
particular reference Quarter 3; Corporate Performance 
Report.
 
(Time allocated – 30 minutes).

12. ANY OTHER UNRESTRICTED BUSINESS 
WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS TO BE 
URGENT 

To consider any other unrestricted business that the Chair 
considers to be urgent.

13. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  

In view of the contents of the remaining items on the 
agenda the Committee is recommended to adopt the 
following motion:

“That, under the provisions of Section 100A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, the press 
and public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting 
for the consideration of the Section Two business on the 
grounds that it contains information defined as Exempt in 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act, 
1972.”

EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL SECTION (Pink Papers)

The exempt committee papers in the agenda will contain 
information, which is commercially, legally or personally 
sensitive and should not be divulged to third parties.  If you 

Page 4



do not wish to retain these papers after the meeting, please 
hand them to the Committee Officer present.

SECTION TWO WARD PAGE 
NUMBER(S)

14. EXEMPT/ CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES 

Nil items

15. EXEMPT/ CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS 'CALLED 
IN' 

No decisions of the Mayor in Cabinet 27th February, 2018 
in respect of exempt/ confidential reports on the agenda 
were ‘called in’.

16. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF EXEMPT/ 
CONFIDENTIAL) CABINET PAPERS 

To consider and agree pre-decision scrutiny 
questions/comments to be presented to Cabinet.
 
(Time allocated 15 minutes).

17. ANY OTHER EXEMPT/ CONFIDENTIAL 
BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS 
URGENT 

To consider any other exempt/ confidential business that 
the Chair considers to be urgent.

Next Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Thursday, 22 March 2018 at 6.30 p.m. to be held in Room C1, 1st Floor, Town Hall, 
Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London, E14 2BG

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE MONITORING OFFICER

This note is for guidance only.  For further details please consult the Members’ Code of Conduct 
at Part 5.1 of the Council’s Constitution.   

Please note that the question of whether a Member has an interest in any matter, and whether or 
not that interest is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, is for that Member to decide.  Advice is 
available from officers as listed below but they cannot make the decision for the Member.  If in 
doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to attending a meeting.  

Interests and Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs)

You have an interest in any business of the authority where that business relates to or is likely to 
affect any of the persons, bodies or matters listed in section 4.1 (a) of the Code of Conduct; and 
might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-being or financial position of yourself, a 
member of your family or a person with whom you have a close association, to a greater extent 
than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward affected.

You must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of any such interest, for inclusion in the Register 
of Members’ Interests which is available for public inspection and on the Council’s Website.

Once you have recorded an interest in the Register, you are not then required to declare that 
interest at each meeting where the business is discussed, unless the interest is a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest (DPI).

A DPI is defined in Regulations as a pecuniary interest of any of the descriptions listed at 
Appendix A overleaf.  Please note that a Member’s DPIs include his/her own relevant interests 
and also those of his/her spouse or civil partner; or a person with whom the Member is living as 
husband and wife; or a person with whom the Member is living as if they were civil partners; if the 
Member is aware that that other person has the interest.   

Effect of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest on participation at meetings

Where you have a DPI in any business of the Council you must, unless you have obtained a 
dispensation from the authority's Monitoring Officer following consideration by the Dispensations 
Sub-Committee of the Standards Advisory Committee:-

- not seek to improperly influence a decision about that business; and
- not exercise executive functions in relation to that business.

If you are present at a meeting where that business is discussed, you must:-
- Disclose to the meeting  the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting 

or when the interest becomes apparent, if later; and 
- Leave the room (including any public viewing area) for the duration of consideration and 

decision on the item and not seek to influence the debate or decision 

When declaring a DPI, Members should specify the nature of the interest and the agenda item to 
which the interest relates.  This procedure is designed to assist the public’s understanding of the 
meeting and to enable a full record to be made in the minutes of the meeting.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



Where you have a DPI in any business of the authority which is not included in the Member’s 
register of interests and you attend a meeting of the authority at which the business is 
considered, in addition to disclosing the interest to that meeting, you must also within 28 days 
notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest for inclusion in the Register. 

Further advice

For further advice please contact:-

Asmat Hussain, Corporate Director, Governance and Monitoring Officer. Tel 020 7364 4800

Page 8



APPENDIX A:  Definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest

(Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, Reg 2 and Schedule)

Subject Prescribed description
Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vacation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on 
for profit or gain.

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other 
than from the relevant authority) made or provided within the 
relevant period in respect of any expenses incurred by the 
Member in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the 
election expenses of the Member.
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union 
within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a 
body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and 
the relevant authority—
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works 
are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the 
relevant authority.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the Member’s knowledge)—
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where—
(a) that body (to the Member’s knowledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and
(b) either—

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the 
total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth 
of the total issued share capital of that class.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Non-Executive Report of the:

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

13th March 2018

Report of: Sharon Godman, Divisional Director, Strategy 
Policy & Partnership Service, and Asmat Hussain, 
Corporate Director, Governance.  

Classification:
Unrestricted

Impact of Brexit on Tower Hamlets Council: A Scrutiny Challenge Report

Originating Officer(s) Shibbir Ahmed, Strategy, Policy & Performance Officer
Corporate Strategy and Equality Team

Wards affected All

Summary
This report provides the report and recommendations of the Scrutiny Challenge session 
held on 7th of December 2017 on the potential impact of Brexit on the Council. 

Recommendations:

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is recommended to: 

1. Agree the report and the recommendations; 
2. Authorise the Divisional Director, Strategy, Policy and Partnership to amend the 

draft report before submission to Cabinet, after consultation with the Chair of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee; and

3. Agree the scoping for the Brexit Scrutiny Review. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 9



1. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS

1.1 This report outlines the findings and recommendations from the Brexit Scrutiny 
Challenge Session, which was part of the Overview & Scrutiny Sub-Committee’s 
work programme for the 2017/18 municipal year. 

2. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

2.1 The Committee may decide to not to agree the recommendations. This is not 
recommended as the report outlines work undertaken by Councillors and officers to 
identify areas of improvement.

3. DETAILS OF REPORT

Background and context 

3.1 As part of his work programme for 2017/18, the Scrutiny Lead for Governance, 
Councillor Ayas Miah undertook a Scrutiny Challenge Session focused on the 
potential impact of Brexit on the Council. There were a total of 10 recommendations 
that were agreed at the Challenge Session.

3.2 The Challenge Session offered the opportunity to begin exploratory discussions on 
the Council’s resilience planning and to recommend key priorities for mitigation 
planning. Due to uncertainty around Brexit negotiation, limited time, resources and 
scope, the Challenge Session was not able to discuss the impact of Brexit on Tower 
Hamlets as a place, such as our economic stability and community cohesion.

3.3 The key questions that the Challenge Session explored and addressed were:
 What impact could Brexit have on Tower Hamlets as a Local Authority, particularly 

in relation to our legal powers and responsibilities?
 What are the likely challenges and opportunities of Brexit for our workforce and 

funding for core services? What is the likely impact of this on our local residents 
and regeneration schemes?

 How could the Council ensure that it develops a comprehensive and proactive 
plan to mitigating the impact of Brexit?

 In preparing the Council for Brexit what should be our priority areas of contingency 
planning and how do we ensure that this is effectively communicated to all our 
internal and external stakeholders? 

3.4 The following Members and officers attended the Challenge Session held on 7th 
December 2017:
Name Title Organisation
Councillor Ayas 
Miah 

Chair of Brexit Challenge Session
Scrutiny Lead for Governance

LBTH

Councillor Dave 
Chesterton

Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (OSC)

LBTH

Councillor 
Rabina Khan

OSC Member
People's Alliance of Tower Hamlets
(Leader of PATH Group)

LBTH

Page 12



 

3.8 Evidence gathering and methodology

3.9 The Challenge Session received brief presentations on the following areas:
 Context of Brexit, for example  local demographics 
 Impact of Brexit on our legal powers and responsibilities 
 Impact of Brexit on our workforce 
 Impact of Brexit on our core funding 
 Impact of Brexit on our development and regeneration schemes 

3.10 The report with recommendations is attached as Appendix 1. There are ten 
recommendations arising from the challenge session. It is useful to note that the 
report reflects the discussion from a two hour challenge session. The report 
recognises this is just the start of the discussions on the impact of Brexit. Due to 
uncertainty around Brexit negotiation, limited time, resources and scope, this 
Challenge Session was not able to discuss the impact of Brexit on Tower Hamlets as 
a place, such as our economic stability and community cohesion. 

3.11 Therefore one of the key recommendations was for the 2018/19 Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee to continue the Brexit Scrutiny work into the new municipal year and 
provide officers with sufficient information to allow them to organise a full Brexit 
Scrutiny Review to obtain further assessment of the progress of Brexit and consider 
its implications for the Council, Partners and our wider community.

3.12 The proposals and draft Scoping Paper for the Brexit Scrutiny Full Review is attached 
as Appendix 2.

Anne Ambrose Co-opted Member for Housing Scrutiny 
Sub-Committe

Housing Scrutiny

Anna Finch-
Smith

Employee Relations Officer LBTH

Bethan Lant Brexit Research Project Lead PRAXIS
Emily Fieran-
Reed

Cohesion, Community Engagement & 
Commissioning  Service Manager

LBTH

Juanita Haynes Senior  Research Officer
Strategy and Performance

LBTH

Jonathan Fox Contracts Team Leader
Legal Service 

LBTH

Hannah Ismail Trainee Solicitor
Legal Service Observer

LBTH

Holly Bell Trainee Solicitor
Legal Service Observer

LBTH

Elizabeth Bailey Senior Strategy, Policy  &  
Performance Officer

LBTH

Shibbir Ahmed Strategy, Policy  &  Performance 
Officer

LBTH

Joseph Ward Planning & Building Control Officer LBTH
Owen Whalley Divisional Director  - Planning & 

Building Control 
LBTH

Andy Scott Acting Service Head for Economic 
Development

LBTH

Neville Murton Service Head of Finance and 
Procurement

LBTH

Page 13



3.13 The draft Scoping Paper will need to be brought back to OSC for sign off no later than 
the March 2018 OSC meeting. This will involve our agreeing the subject areas, those 
who will be asked to provide evidence, the date and locations for sessions.

3.14 The Challenge Session report highlights very clearly that there is a lot of uncertainty 
nationally and it is still not clear what kind of Brexit the country face. Until we have the 
full and final agreed Brexit agreement in place, it will be difficult to determine the exact 
impact.

3.15 Despite this, the Council needs to be fully prepared for all eventualities (including a 
“no deal Brexit”) and constantly keep abreast of all key Brexit developments, by 
identifying and reviewing areas of potential impact.

3.16 Findings from the Challenge Session discussion, which included submissions from 
Senior Officers, have been supplemented by additional secondary sources. These 
include latest population statistics and trends, analysis taken from the Brexit research 
project by ‘Collaborate’ and findings from national and regional Brexit Impact reports. 
The recommendations arising from this  range of evidence sources are outlined 
below:

3.17 Recommendation 1: 
The Council should carry out a more detailed migration analysis of the potential 
impact of Brexit on our local population and develop an updated profile of the 
European Migrant community in Tower Hamlets.

3.18 Recommendation 2: 
The Council should carry out a more detailed equalities analysis of the potential 
impact of Brexit on community cohesion in Tower Hamlets and publicise the ‘No Place 
for Hate’ campaign to reassure and address wellbeing and insecurity issues of EU 
Nationals.

3.19 Recommendation 3: 
The Council should identify the specialist skills and the number of EU nationals within 
its workforce and those employed by our key suppliers and ensure retention 
strategies and positive wellbeing provisions are in place.

3.20 Recommendation 4: 
The Council should commission research to examine the contribution European 
migrants make to the borough’s labour market and the potential impact of Brexit on 
the Financial & Professional Services, construction industry and the borough’s key 
growth sectors.

3.21 Recommendation 5:
a) The Council should produce a finance report which identifies all EU funded projects 
and services that our key partners deliver in Tower Hamlets including regeneration 
schemes at risk of stalling.
b) The Council should work closely with developers and partners to develop mitigation 
strategies to replace lost EU funds for community employment programmes, services 
and regeneration projects.

3.22 Recommendation 6:
The Council should work closely with other Local Authorities and London Councils to 
co-ordinate the lobbying of Central Government to replace the EU funding loss.

Page 14



3.23 Recommendation 7:
The 2018/19 Overview & Scrutiny Committee should carry out a full Brexit Scrutiny 
Review to obtain detailed assessment and better understanding of the progress of 
Brexit and its implications for the borough including a focus on:
1) Impact on the Council, core funding and services for residents;
2) Challenges and opportunities for local economy; 
3) Community Cohesion.

3.24 Recommendation 8: 
The Community Plan and all our strategic and risk management plans should 
reference Brexit.

3.25 Recommendation 9: 
The Council should proactively seek out and respond to all direct and indirect 
opportunities to communicate and represent the Tower Hamlets interests in the Brexit 
process.

3.26 Recommendation 10:
The Council should develop policies and targeted marketing strategies to promote the 
Borough to retain and attract business and enable the future economic growth.

4. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

4.1 This report details the findings and recommendations of the Scrutiny Challenge 
session held on the 7th of December 2017 to consider the potential impact of Brexit on 
Tower Hamlets Council.

4.2 There are 10 specific recommendations being put forward for Cabinet consideration. It 
should be possible to deliver a number of these recommendations through existing 
resources. However, where this is not possible officers will be obliged to seek 
appropriate approval through the Council’s financial approval process.

5. LEGAL COMMENTS 

5.1 The Council is required by section 9F of the Local Government Act 2000 to have an 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and to have executive arrangements that ensure 
the committee has specified powers. Consistent with this obligation, Article 6 of the 
Council’s Constitution provides that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may 
consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants.  The Committee may also 
make reports and recommendations to Council or the Executive in connection with the 
discharge of any functions.

5.2 The Challenge Session looked at the potential impact of Brexit on the Council and to 
obtain an overview of the Council’s understanding of the likely impact of Brexit on the 
organisation. It was also to begin exploratory discussions on the Council’s resilience 
planning for the organisation and to recommend key priorities for mitigation planning 
going forward. In that regard, 10 recommendations have been proposed and all are 
capable of being undertaken within the Council’s powers.

6. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS

6.1 The report recommends the Council to carry out a detailed equalities analysis of the 
potential impact of Brexit on its works force, suppliers and the local communities living 
in the borough.

Page 15



6.2 The report recommends the full Brexit Scrutiny Review will look to explore ways to 
promote diversity and community cohesion as well as consider appropriate and 
specific support that could be offered to EU migrants and residents and consider 
potential impact on different equalities groups and how the borough can mitigate 
these impacts..

6.3 The report recommends the Brexit Scrutiny Review to ensure evidence sessions are 
open and inclusive and the engagement strategy is built on existing good practices 
and learning from elsewhere and consider all available resources within the Tower 
Hamlets Partnership to support and lead effective community engagement.

7. BEST VALUE (BV) IMPLICATIONS

7.1 The recommendations in this report are made as part of the Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee’s role in helping to secure continuous improvement for the council, as 
required under its Best Value duty. 

8. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT

8.1 There are no direct sustainable actions for the greener environment arising from this 
report.

9. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

9.1 Once the report has been agreed by Governance DMT and Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, officers will produce a detailed action plan, to implement the 
recommendations.  Therefore, during the action planning stage the key risks, 
implications and mitigating actions will be identified and agreed.
 

10. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS

10.1 There are no direct sustainable actions for greener environment arising from this 
report.

____________________________________

Linked Reports, Appendices and Background Documents

Linked Report
 NONE

Appendices
 Appendix 1:  Brexit Scrutiny Challenge  Report
 Appendix 2: Brexit Scrutiny Review – Scoping Paper

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended)
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report
 NONE 

Page 16



 
 

1 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Brexit Scrutiny 
Challenge Session  

 
 

 
 

February 2018 

Page 17



 
 

2 
 

Table of Contents 
 
Chair’s Foreword 
 

Page 
3 

Executive Summary 
 

Pages  
4-5 

Summary of Recommendations Pages  
6-7 

Introduction and Rationale 
 

Pages 
8-9 

The National & Legislative Context 
 
Brief overview of Brexit negotiations 
 
Transition Period 
 

Pages  
10-11 

11 
 

11-12 
 

The Regional / London / Local Context     
 

Pages  
12-13 

Impact of Brexit on Local Population and Cohesion   
 

Pages 
13-18 

Impact of Brexit on the Council’s Workforce Pages 
19-20 

Impact of Brexit on the Council’s Legal Powers & Responsibilities Pages 
21-22 

Impact of Brexit on Council’s Core Funding and Finances Pages 
23-25 

Impact of Brexit on our development and regeneration schemes Pages 
26- 27 

Priorities and Scrutiny Plan  Pages 
27-28 

Conclusion and Next Steps Pages 
29-31 

Appendix 1 Pages  
32 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



 
 

3 
 

The Chair’s Foreword 
 
I conducted this Brexit Scrutiny Challenge session to obtain an overview of the Local 
Authority’s understanding of the likely impact of Brexit on the organisation. It was also to 
begin exploratory discussions on the Council’s resilience planning for the organisation 
and to recommend key priorities for mitigation planning going forward. 
 
This is just the start of the discussions on the impact of Brexit. Due to uncertainty around 
Brexit negotiation, limited time, resources and scope, this Challenge Session was not 
able to fully discuss the impact of Brexit on Tower Hamlets as a place, such as our 
economic stability and community cohesion. This is not because these are not 
important, they are absolutely vital, but because our main focus at the session was to 
consider the potential impact of Brexit on the Council’s operations. 
 
The broader issues are already being considered by the Tower Hamlets Strategic 
Partnership and as clearly recommended in this report; Scrutiny will need to have further 
sessions devoted to more detailed discussions on the possible impact of Brexit on our 
attractiveness and competitiveness as a business destination and the communities that 
call it home. 
 
I envisage that the Brexit Scrutiny work will go over into 2018/19 and I expect it to be 
picked up by the new Overview & Scrutiny Committee after May 2018. The reason for 
putting aspects of this Challenge Session back into next year is that it should then be 
clearer what kind of Brexit the country is facing. 
 
This report makes it clear that the Council needs to be fully prepared for all eventualities 
(including a “no deal Brexit”) and constantly keep abreast of all key Brexit developments, 
by identifying and reviewing areas of potential impact. This will allow it to increase 
resilience and develop high level contingency plans that protect our revenue streams, 
workforce, local regeneration, infrastructure projects and community cohesion priorities. 
 
I am grateful to all the Officers and Scrutiny Members for their contributions, time, 
energy, thoughts, and insights which really focussed our discussion and were 
instrumental in producing this report.  
 
Councillor Ayas Miah 
Scrutiny Lead, Governance  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19

http://democracy.towerhamlets.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=2948
http://democracy.towerhamlets.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=2948


 
 

4 
 

1. Executive Summary  
 

Brexit Impact 
 

1.1 The potential impact on the population in Tower Hamlets: 

 Brexit will have an impact on the UK economy, labour market and migration 
patterns, which will consequently affect the population of Tower Hamlets, 
especially non-UK EU citizens; 

 Local third sector organisations supporting migrant, refugee and asylum seeker 
communities in the borough have reported an increase in hate crimes in the 
period immediately after the vote to leave the EU and Police figures record an 
increase in hate crime reporting at this time.  

 
1.2  The potential impact on the Council’s legal and governance considerations:  

 There will be no real effect on the Council’s Powers to Act;  

 The current procurement rules are likely to remain intact; 

 There may be small opportunities to assist our objectives e.g. speeding up 
tendering and increased local expenditure, but this will all depend on the final 
Brexit arrangement and model that the UK government agrees with the EU. 
 

1.3  The potential impact on the Council’s workforce: 

 Potentially more EU nationals leaving the country/fewer coming in. There is 
currently insufficient information to make a determination on the specific impact 
this might have but it could result in skills losses/shortages in areas more 
dependent on EU workers e.g. care workers, nurses, health care and 
construction; 

 Wellbeing issues for all Council staff, including EU nationals – e.g. a reported rise 
in hate crimes since referendum. 

  
1.4 The potential impact on Council funding: 

 European Social Fund (ESF) resources will be unavailable in the future. Whilst 
not likely to be affected this time, local programmes currently funded by ESF 
include the Community Employment programme (£1.35m over next 3 years, half 
of it being funded through ESF), which helps local residents into work and Usage 
of ESF funds (approximately £100,000 per quarter) in Economic Development 
area might be at risk; however, these funds are likely to be replaced by s106 
monies.  

 European Regional Development funding revenue and/or capital funds for 
stimulation of markets, access and employment, supply chains, business start-
ups (current programme £1.6m incl. £25,000 from Council for enhancing supply 
chain trade locally). 

 
1.5 The potential impact on the Council’s development and regeneration schemes: 

 A loss of consumer confidence and rising build costs will affect the financial 
viability of schemes and could result in stalled development. This may lead to the 
Council being unable to meet its housing supply targets and to potential social 
and safety issues associated with sites being closed for a substantial period of 
time;  

 Diminished infrastructure funds, housing loans from the European Investment 
Bank and housing association borrowing abilities; 

Page 20



 
 

5 
 

 Construction sector - skills shortages, job losses and reduced employment 
opportunities. 

 
 

Mitigations 
 

1.6 Key mitigations include: 
 

 Ensure the Council is regularly appraised of the latest developments in Brexit 
negotiations for clarity of on areas of potential impact and to allow for action to be 
taken as appropriate;  

 Keep abreast of key Brexit issues and leading/latest thinking from Human 
Resources and Employment Law specialists and assess their local impacts. 

 Increased communications and stakeholder engagement on Brexit;  

 Identify any areas where support/guidance can be given by the Council to help 
and support contractors and suppliers;  

 A robust research programme to identify European labour volume and sectors, 
effects on population and businesses in the borough; 

 Review the re-distribution of funds to replace lost inward investment – e.g. 
through grants, loans, co-operatives etc.; 

 Consider and reference Brexit in the development of key partnership and 
corporate strategies and plans.  

Page 21



 

6 
 

2.0 Summary of Recommendations 
 

Recommendation 1:  
The Council should carry out a more detailed migration analysis of the potential impact of 
Brexit on our local population and develop an updated profile of the European Migrant 
community in Tower Hamlets. 
 

 
Recommendation 2:  
The Council should carry out a more detailed equalities analysis of the potential impact of 
Brexit on community cohesion in Tower Hamlets and publicise the ‘No Place for Hate’ 
campaign to reassure and address wellbeing and insecurity issues of EU Nationals. 
 

 
Recommendation 3:  
The Council should identify the specialist skills and the number of EU nationals within its 
workforce and those employed by our key suppliers and ensure retention strategies and 
positive wellbeing provisions are in place. 
 

 
Recommendation 4:  
The Council should commission research to examine the contribution European migrants 
make to the borough’s labour market and the potential impact of Brexit on the Financial & 
Professional Services, construction industry and the borough’s key growth sectors. 
 

 
Recommendation 5: 
a) The Council should produce a finance report which identifies all EU funded projects and 
services that our key partners deliver in Tower Hamlets including regeneration schemes at 
risk of stalling. 
b) The Council should work closely with developers and partners to develop mitigation 
strategies to replace lost EU funds for community employment programmes, services and 
regeneration projects. 
 

 

Recommendation 6: 
The Council should work closely with other Local Authorities and London Councils to co-
ordinate the lobbying of Central Government to replace the EU funding loss. 
 

 

Recommendation 7: 
The 2018/19 Overview & Scrutiny Committee should carry out a full Brexit Scrutiny Review 
to obtain detailed assessment and better understanding of the progress of Brexit and its 
implications for the borough including a focus on: 
1) Impact on the Council, core funding and services for residents; 
2) Challenges and opportunities for local economy;  
3) Community Cohesion. 
 

 

Page 22



 

7 
 

 

Recommendation 8:  
The Community Plan and all our strategic and risk management plans should reference 
Brexit. 
 

 

Recommendation 9:  
The Council should proactively seek out and respond to all direct and indirect opportunities 
to communicate and represent the Tower Hamlets interests in the Brexit process. 
 

 

Recommendation 10: 
The Council should develop policies and targeted marketing strategies to promote the 
Borough to retain and attract business and enable the future economic growth. 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



 

8 
 

3.0 Introduction and Rationale 
 

3.1 As part of the Overview & Scrutiny work programme for 2017/18 the Scrutiny Lead for 
Governance conducted a Brexit Scrutiny Challenge session to obtain a brief overview 
of the Local Authority’s understanding of Brexit and its likely impact on the Council as 
an organisation. 

 
3.2 It was also to begin exploratory discussions on the Council’s resilience planning for the 

organisation and to recommend key priorities for the Council’s mitigation planning. 
 
 

3.3 The key questions that the Challenge Session explored and addressed were: 
 

 What impact could Brexit have on Tower Hamlets as a Local Authority, particularly 
in relation to our legal powers and responsibilities? 

 What are the likely challenges and opportunities of Brexit for our workforce and 
funding for core services? What is the likely impact of this on our local residents and 
regeneration schemes? 

 How could the Council ensure that it develops a comprehensive and proactive plan 
to mitigating the impact of Brexit? 

 In preparing the Council for Brexit what should be our priority areas of contingency 
planning and how do we ensure that this is effectively communicated to all our 
internal and external stakeholders?  

 
3.4 The Challenge Session received brief presentations on the following areas: 

 

 Context of Brexit, for example  local demographics  

 Impact of Brexit on our legal powers and responsibilities  

 Impact of Brexit on our workforce  
 Impact of Brexit on our core funding  
 Impact of Brexit on our development and regeneration schemes  

 
 

3.5  The format of the Challenge Session consisted of presentations followed by a question 
& answer session and then an exploratory discussion on key priorities and mitigation 
plans. The findings and recommendations from the session are conveyed in this 
report. 

     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



 

9 
 

3.6  The challenge session attendance 
 

The following Members and officers attended the challenge session held on 7th December 
2017: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Name Title Organisation 

Councillor Ayas Miah  Chair of Brexit Challenge Session 
Scrutiny Lead for Governance 

LBTH 

Councillor Dave 
Chesterton 

Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (OSC) 

LBTH 

Councillor Rabina Khan OSC Member 
People's Alliance of Tower Hamlets 
(Leader of PATH Group) 

LBTH 

Anne Ambrose Co-opted Member for Housing Scrutiny 
Sub-Committe 

Housing Scrutiny 

Anna Finch-Smith Employee Relations Officer LBTH 

Bethan Lant Brexit Research Project Lead PRAXIS 

Emily Fieran-Reed Cohesion, Community Engagement & 
Commissioning  Service Manager 

LBTH 

Juanita Haynes Senior  Research Officer 
Strategy and Performance 

LBTH 

Jonathan Fox Contracts Team Leader 
Legal Service  

LBTH 

Hannah Ismail Trainee Solicitor 
Legal Service Observer 

LBTH 

Holly Bell Trainee Solicitor 
Legal Service Observer 

LBTH 

Elizabeth Bailey Senior Strategy, Policy  &  
Performance Officer 

LBTH 

Shibbir Ahmed Strategy, Policy  &  Performance 
Officer 

LBTH 

Joseph Ward Planning & Building Control Officer LBTH 

Owen Whalley Divisional Director  - Planning & 
Building Control  

LBTH 

Andy Scott Acting Service Head for Economic 
Development 

LBTH 

Neville Murton Service Head of Finance and 
Procurement 

LBTH 

Page 25



 

10 
 

4.0 Background & Legislative Context 
 
 Brexit Background 
 

4.1 The United Kingdom European Union (EU) Membership Referendum on 23rd June 2016 
resulted in Britain voting to leave the European Union. Tower Hamlets overwhelmingly 
voted to remain in the European Union: with a Turnout of 64.59% (108,235 residents), 
67.46% (73,011) voted Remain and 32.54% (35,224) voted Leave. There was however a 
lower turnout in TH (64.59%) compared to the UK (72.2%).1 

 
 

4.2 Brexit is one of the biggest political events in UK’s history, and will have major 
implications in the way the country is governed. The Office of Budget Responsibility 
estimated that Brexit will cost the UK economy £58.7 billion over the next five years and 
there are likely to be unquantifiable social impacts too.2 

 
 The Legislative Context  

 
4.3  The Government formally triggered Article 50 on 29th March 2017 and published details 

of its EU (withdrawal Bill) also known as the "Great Repeal Bill". 
 

4.4 This Bill will repeal the 1972 European Communities Act, which took Britain into the 
European Community and meant that European law took precedent over laws passed in 
the UK Parliament.  

 
4.5 Prime Minister Theresa May used a speech in Florence on 22nd September 2017 to set 

out proposals for a two-year transition period after the UK leaves the EU in March 2019. 
 
 

                                            
1
 http://democracy.towerhamlets.gov.uk/mgElectionAreaResults.aspx?ID=121&RPID=11340903  

2
 http://www.independent.co.uk/news/business/news/brexit-latest-news-lost-tax-revenue-treasury-

productivity-growth-rate-obr-office-budget-a7838891.html  

Leave, 
35,224 

Remain, 73,011 
Total, 108,235 

EU Referendum Vote in 
 Tower Hamlets 

Page 26

http://democracy.towerhamlets.gov.uk/mgElectionAreaResults.aspx?ID=121&RPID=11340903
http://www.independent.co.uk/news/business/news/brexit-latest-news-lost-tax-revenue-treasury-productivity-growth-rate-obr-office-budget-a7838891.html
http://www.independent.co.uk/news/business/news/brexit-latest-news-lost-tax-revenue-treasury-productivity-growth-rate-obr-office-budget-a7838891.html


 

11 
 

Brexit Negotiations 
 

4.6 Formal negotiations began between UK and EU officials on 19th June 2017. The UK and 
EU negotiating teams meet face-to-face for one week each month, with extra sessions 
ahead of EU summits. It is anticipated that the UK departure from the EU should be 
completed by April 2019. 
 

4.7 Their first priorities have been to reach agreement on the rights of UK and EU expat 
citizens after Brexit, establish a figure for the amount of money the UK will pay on leaving 
(the so-called "divorce bill") and the status of the Northern Ireland border. Agreement on 
these issues was reached on 8 December 2017:3 

 Guarantee that there will be "no hard border" between Northern Ireland and the 
Republic and that the "constitutional and economic integrity of the United Kingdom" 
will be maintained;  

 EU citizens living in the UK and vice versa will have their rights to live, work and 
study protected. The agreement includes reunification rights for relatives who do not 
live in the UK to join them in their host country in the future; 

 Financial settlement – no specific figure is referred to in the document but Downing 
Street sources indicate it will be between £35bn and £39bn, including budget 
contributions during a two-year "transition" period after March 2019.4 

 
Transition Period 
 

4.8 Prime Minister Theresa May has said the transition period, which the UK side tends to 
refer to as an "implementation phase", will allow businesses time to prepare for the new 
arrangements, and avoid disrupting holiday-makers and things like international security 
measures. 
 

4.9 Although we do not exactly know yet what the transition period will look like, (because 
this is what is currently being negotiated between the UK and the EU) we do know the 
following things the two sides want: 

 The EU, which published its demands recently, has said the transition period should 
not extend beyond 31 December 2020, 21 months after Brexit is completed and 
wants the UK to continue to follow its rules during this time - but not be involved in 
making decisions. 

 The UK has said businesses should not have to adapt twice to new rules and 
regulations - suggesting it agrees on a largely "status quo" arrangement and free 
movement of people, goods and money can continue, and that it will still be subject 
to European Court of Justice rulings. 

 The UK wants a "right to object" to new EU laws it doesn't agree with, and has 
predicted an "argument" with the other side about this. 

 Another potential point of disagreement comes with regards to citizens' rights - in 
particular EU nationals who move to the UK during the transition period. Do they get 
treated the same as if they had arrived while the UK was in the EU? The EU says 
yes, the UK no. 

 The UK also wants to be able to strike trade deals with other countries - which it 
cannot do as an EU member - although these cannot come into force until the 
transition ends. The EU has not objected to this. 

                                            
3
 BBC News Website: http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-politics-42277040  (Dec 2017) 

4
 BBC News Website: http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-politics-42277040  (Dec 2017) 

Page 27

http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-politics-42277040
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-politics-42277040


 

12 
 

 
4.10 Steps to Leaving the EU 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



 

13 
 

5.0  Regional and Local Context  
 

5.1  Research published by the Migration Observatory suggests that uncertainty caused by 
the EU Referendum is already beginning to have an impact on migration.  International 
migration statistics published by the Office for National Statistics at the end of November 
2017 shows that net migration to the UK has fallen by 106,000 and that this decrease 
has been mainly driven by the fall in immigration of EU citizens.  Nationally the departure 
of migrants from the A8 countries, those that joined the EU from the A8 countries in 2004 
– Poland, Latvia, Lithuania, Estonia, Hungary, the Czech Republic, Slovakia and 
Slovenia – appears to be driving the decline.5   

 
5.2  The Migration Observatory also suggests that there are number of factors which may be 

influencing the decline: 

 The fall in the value of the pound leading to the reduction in the relative value of 
wages for foreign workers in the UK; 

 The UK no longer appearing attractive to A8 workers because of the lack of clarity 
about their long term rights of residence; and 

 The increase in the number of hate crimes which appeared to particularly affect 
Polish and other Eastern European migrants immediately after the EU 
Referendum.6 

 
London  
 

5.3  London contributes 30% of the UK's tax revenues and its population and economy have 
been growing since the 1990s. Today the capital is one of a handful of truly global cities 
in an increasingly urbanised world. Its global character is reflected in the diversity of its 
population, in its relatively relaxed attitude towards immigration and the clear majority of 
Londoners who voted to remain in the EU.7 

  
5.4  London is a global centre for finance, for tech, for creative industries, for not-for-profits 

and for higher education. Its vitality, diversity and economic growth have made it a 
magnet for young and creative people from across both the country and the world. 
London’s economy generates one fifth of the UK’s GDP and one third of UK taxes, and 
firms based in the capital provide jobs across the country. Growth has also brought 
strains to the capital. Speculation and undersupply have pushed up house prices to 
levels that are unaffordable for many middle-income Londoners. Transport congestion 
constrains mobility and worsens air quality, while transport costs are also rising as 
workers have to commute longer distances.8  

 
5.5  London’s success is not solely a result of EU membership, but Brexit presents big 

challenges to the capital – challenges that are different both in degree and in character 
from those posed for the rest of the UK. Addressing these obstacles – and the 
opportunities that Brexit could offer – in the upcoming negotiations and in domestic 
devolution, will be essential to ensuring a prosperous future for the UK.9 

                                            
5
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/internationalmigration/bulle

tins/migrationstatisticsquarterlyreport/november2017  
6
 http://www.migrationobservatory.ox.ac.uk/resources/briefings/determinants-of-migration-to-the-uk/  

7
 Better Brexit – Better City Report 2017: https://www.centreforlondon.org/reader/better-brexit-better-city/   

8
 Better Brexit – Better City Report 2017: https://www.centreforlondon.org/reader/better-brexit-better-city/   

9 Better Brexit – Better City Report 2017 https://www.centreforlondon.org/reader/better-brexit-better-city/   
 

Page 29

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/internationalmigration/bulletins/migrationstatisticsquarterlyreport/november2017
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/internationalmigration/bulletins/migrationstatisticsquarterlyreport/november2017
http://www.migrationobservatory.ox.ac.uk/resources/briefings/determinants-of-migration-to-the-uk/
https://www.centreforlondon.org/reader/better-brexit-better-city/
https://www.centreforlondon.org/reader/better-brexit-better-city/
https://www.centreforlondon.org/reader/better-brexit-better-city/


 

14 
 

5.6  The new independent economic analysis commissioned by the Mayor of London, Sadiq 
Khan, indicates that a 'no deal' hard Brexit could lead to a lost decade or longer of 
significantly lower growth. The worst-case scenario could result in: 

 500,000 fewer jobs 
 87,000 fewer jobs in London by 2030 
 nearly £50bn UK-wide investment lost by 203010 

 
5.7  The GLA Brexit research report (Preparing for Brexit) suggests potentially the impact 

could be greater in Inner than Outer London. Inner London is expected to experience a 
larger negative impact as a result of Brexit in terms of Gross Value Added (GVA), 
employment and population (compared to what may have happened if the UK remained 
in the Single Market and Customs Union), as this is where the majority of EU-dependent 
economic activities occur. In particular, sectors in London that are likely to be more 
exposed to the risks of Brexit, such as Financial & insurance, Media, IT Services, Legal & 
accounting and Head offices & management consultancy, have a greater presence in 
Inner London areas such as Tower Hamlets and the City of London than in Outer London 
areas. Together, these sectors account for 44% of total GVA and 29% of total 
employment in Inner London in 2016, compared to 18% of total GVA and 13% of total 
employment in Outer London.11 

 
5.8 Financial and professional services could be the hardest hit with 119,000 fewer jobs 

nationally. Other sectors reported include: science and technology (92,000 fewer 
jobs), construction (43,000 fewer jobs) and the creative sector (27,000 fewer jobs).12 

 
5.9  Even softer Brexit scenarios, like the UK remaining in the Single Market, but leaving the 

Customs Union after a transition period could still result in a 176,000 fewer jobs across 
the country.13 

 

6.0  Tower Hamlets 
 
 

6.1  The Office for National Statistics (ONS) 
estimated the usual resident population of 
Tower Hamlets to be 304,900 as at 30 June 
2016.i This is the first time the area’s 
population has exceeded 300,000 since 
before the Second World War. Figure 2 
shows that in terms of population size, 
Tower Hamlets is ranked 11th largest out of 
the 33 local authority areas in London (32 
boroughs and City). The borough previously 
ranked as the 14th largest London borough 
in mid-2015 – we surpassed Hillingdon, 
Lewisham, and Redbridge in the past year. 

 
 

                                            
10

 https://www.london.gov.uk/press-releases/mayoral/jobs-under-threat-from-brexit  
11

 https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/preparing_for_brexit_final_report.pdf  
12

 https://www.london.gov.uk/press-releases/mayoral/jobs-under-threat-from-brexit  
13

 https://www.london.gov.uk/press-releases/mayoral/jobs-under-threat-from-brexit  

386,100

382,300

343,200

341,000

331,400

328,300

327,900

326,900

316,100

313,200

304,900

302,500

301,900

299,200

279,800

278,500

275,800

273,500

271,100

252,800

248,800

247,600

246,200

244,800

232,900

206,500

205,000

202,200

195,800

179,700

176,100

156,700

9,400

Barnet

Croydon

Ealing

Newham

Enfield

Brent

Lambeth

Bromley

Wandsworth

Southwark

Tower Hamlets

Hillingdon

Lewisham

Redbridge

Greenwich

Haringey

Waltham Forest

Hackney

Hounslow

Havering

Harrow

Westminster

Camden

Bexley

Islington

Barking and Dagenham

Merton

Sutton

Richmond upon Thames

Hammersmith and Fulham

Kingston upon Thames

Kensington and Chelsea

City of London

Tower Hamlets

Source: ONS 2016 Mid-year Population Estimates

Greater 
London =
8,787,900

Figure 2.1: Mid-2016 population estimates 
for London 

Page 30

https://www.london.gov.uk/press-releases/mayoral/jobs-under-threat-from-brexit
https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/preparing_for_brexit_final_report.pdf
https://www.london.gov.uk/press-releases/mayoral/jobs-under-threat-from-brexit
https://www.london.gov.uk/press-releases/mayoral/jobs-under-threat-from-brexit


 

15 
 

6.2  The borough’s population is very diverse with around 43% of our residents born outside 
the UK and more than two thirds of the population (69%) are from ethnic minority groups.  
Tower Hamlets has the 9th highest proportion in England of residents born outside the 
UK.  Our migrant population is hugely diverse and includes older residents who arrived in 
London decades ago alongside recent arrivals.14 

 
6.3   The population of Tower Hamlets has more than doubled in the past 30 years, rising from 

150,200 in 1986 to 304,900 in 2016. Growth has been particularly fast over the last 
decade. Between 2006 and 2016, the population grew by 86,500 residents – a 40% 
increase. This was the fastest population increase out of all 391 local authority areas in 
the UK. The borough’s population growth rate (40%) was more than double that in 
London (16%) and more than four times that in England (8%).15 

 
6.4 Taking this expected development into account, projections from the Greater London 

Authority (GLA) expected to reach 365,200 by 2027 (see Figure 2.2).This would be an 
increase of nearly 54,000 residents over the next decade – equivalent to an average of 
around 15 additional residents every day for the next ten years. The borough’s population 
is expected to reach 400,000 by 204.16 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.5  However, it should be noted that these projections based on recent trends and do not 
attempt to take into account the impact of Brexit. This will likely have an impact on the UK 
economy, labour market and migration patterns, which will consequently affect the 
population of Tower Hamlets. 

 
Impact of Brexit on our local population 
 

6.6  The borough’s population growth has largely been driven by international migration.  
Over the past ten years, it is estimated that net international migration increased the 

                                            
14

https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/Documents/Borough_statistics/Population/Mid_2016_Population_Estimat
es_for_Tower_Hamlets.pdf  
15

https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/Documents/Borough_statistics/Population/Mid_2016_Population_Estimat
es_for_Tower_Hamlets.pdf  
16

https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/Documents/Borough_statistics/Population/Mid_2016_Population_Estimat
es_for_Tower_Hamlets.pdf  

2
2

5
,3

0
0

2
3

1
,9

0
0

2
4

0
,5

0
0

2
4

8
,5

0
0

2
5

6
,0

0
0

2
6

3
,0

0
0

2
7

2
,9

0
0

2
8

4
,0

0
0

2
9

5
,2

0
0

3
0

4
,9

0
0

3
1
1

,0
0

0

3
1

7
,2

0
0

3
2

3
,7

0
0

3
2

8
,0

0
0

3
3

1
,6

0
0

3
3

4
,8

0
0

3
4

1
,4

0
0

3
4

8
,4

0
0

3
5

3
,9

0
0

3
5

9
,6

0
0

3
6

5
,2

0
0ONS mid-year estimates GLA projections

Sources: ONS Mid-year Estimates 2007-2016 via NOMIS; GLA 2016-based housing-led population projections (using 2017 SHLAA)

Figure 2.2: Population growth in Tower Hamlets, 2007 to 2027 

Page 31

https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/Documents/Borough_statistics/Population/Mid_2016_Population_Estimates_for_Tower_Hamlets.pdf
https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/Documents/Borough_statistics/Population/Mid_2016_Population_Estimates_for_Tower_Hamlets.pdf
https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/Documents/Borough_statistics/Population/Mid_2016_Population_Estimates_for_Tower_Hamlets.pdf
https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/Documents/Borough_statistics/Population/Mid_2016_Population_Estimates_for_Tower_Hamlets.pdf
https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/Documents/Borough_statistics/Population/Mid_2016_Population_Estimates_for_Tower_Hamlets.pdf
https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/Documents/Borough_statistics/Population/Mid_2016_Population_Estimates_for_Tower_Hamlets.pdf


 

16 
 

population by around 67,800 residents with a significant proportion coming from the 
European Union17. In 2011, one in ten of the borough’s residents were born in EU 
countries (other than the UK). EU nationals have accounted for seven in ten of the 
borough’s economic migrants over the past five years.18 

  
6.7  Brexit is likely to reduce migration from EU countries, so our population growth may well 

be lower than what is projected. Figure 2.3 shows that while economic migration, when 
measured by National Insurance Number Registrations is still high for EU nationals, there 
has been a fall over the past two financial years. Tower Hamlets has the fourth highest 
number of NINo registrants in the country after Newham, Birmingham and Brent.  

 
6.8  Our analysis shows that EU migrants account for 70% of all registrants and in Tower 

Hamlets the most common country of origin is Italy, with Italians accounting for over 20% 
of all registrants in the borough.19 It should be noted that this data only tells us about the 
local authority where the new registrant was located at the time of their application and 
not when they arrived in the country or indeed whether they are still resident in that local 
authority area. 

 

                                            
17

https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/Documents/Borough_statistics/Population/Mid_2016_Population_Estimat
es_for_Tower_Hamlets.pdf  
18

https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/Documents/Borough_statistics/Population/Mid_2016_Population_Estimat
es_for_Tower_Hamlets.pdf  
19

 https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/.../A_Profile_of_the_Migrant_Population_ in_Tower_Hamlets.pdf  

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000
European Union

All other areas

Source: DWP, National Insurance Number Registrations to Overseas Nationals via Stat-Xplore

Figure 2.3: Number of National Insurance Number registrations to overseas 
nationals in Tower Hamlets by region of birth, 2006/7 to 2016/17 

Page 32

https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/Documents/Borough_statistics/Population/Mid_2016_Population_Estimates_for_Tower_Hamlets.pdf
https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/Documents/Borough_statistics/Population/Mid_2016_Population_Estimates_for_Tower_Hamlets.pdf
https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/Documents/Borough_statistics/Population/Mid_2016_Population_Estimates_for_Tower_Hamlets.pdf
https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/Documents/Borough_statistics/Population/Mid_2016_Population_Estimates_for_Tower_Hamlets.pdf
https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/.../A_Profile_of_the_Migrant_Population_%20in_Tower_Hamlets.pdf


 

17 
 

 
6.9  Table 2 (above) shows the top five countries of origins in Tower Hamlets. This is very 

different from the top five countries of origin for London and England.  In London the 
most common are Romania, Italy, Spain, Poland and France whilst nationally they are 
Romania, Poland, Italy, Spain and Bulgaria.  

6.10  Analysis of census data helps us profile the European migrant community in Tower 
Hamlets. Between 2001 and 2011 the proportion of residents born outside the UK 
increased from 35% to 43%.  The most significant increase, in terms of numbers, was 
amongst European migrants with the number residents born in European countries (other 
than the UK) which trebled in size increasing from 10,269 in 2001 to 29,363 in 2011 an 
increase of 186%. European migrants now make up 12% of the population compared to 
5% in 2001.20 

 

 
Impact on EU migrants working in London & Tower Hamlets 

 
6.11  In London 13% (600,000) of the five million jobs are held by EU migrants. Analysis 

published by the London Assembly’s Economic Committee suggests that roughly one 
quarter of EU migrants are concentrated in elementary occupations, e.g. manual labour, 
and one in five in professional and senior level positions. Particular sectors in London 

                                            
20

https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/Documents/Borough_statistics/Population/Mid_2016_Population_Estimat
es_for_Tower_Hamlets.pdf  

Country of 

birth

Number of 

NINo 

Registrations

% of all NINo 

registrations

Italy 3,816 22.7

France 1,936 11.5

Spain 1,621 9.6

Romania 753 4.5

India 747 4.4

Total 16,844 100

Top five countries of origin for NINo 

registrations in Tower Hamlets, 2016/17

Source: DWP, National Insurance Number (NINo) 

registrations via Stat-Xplore

Table 1: Change in population by region of birth, Tower Hamlets, 2001-2011 

  

    

Change                    
2001-2011 

  

Population 
composition      

(% totals) 

  2001 2011 Increase % change   2001 2011 

All usual residents 196,106 254,096 57,990 30   100 100 

Born in UK 128,129 144,662 16,533 13   65 57 

Born outside UK 67,977 109,434 41,457 61   35 43 

Born outside UK: by area  

Europe* 10,269 29,363 19,094 186   5 12 

Africa 7,147 11,342 4,195 59   4 4 

Middle East*  560 1,687 1,127 201   <1 1 

Asia  42,130 54,819 12,689 30   21 22 

 - Bangladesh 35,820 38,877 3,057 9   18 15 

 - Rest of Asia 6,310 15,942 9,632 153   3 6 

Americas & Caribbean 4,340 8,257 3,917 90   2 3 

Australasia/Oceania/other 3,531 3,966 435 12   2 2 

Source: ONS 2001 Census (Table UV08); 2011 Census (Table KS204) 

* In 2001, ONS included Cyprus under the Middle East, whereas in 2011, it was included as part of Europe. To adjust for this, 2001 data have 
been adjusted in this table to include Cyprus under Europe not the Middle East to provide a better like for like comparison. This means these 
figures are marginally different from published ONS data.  

 

Page 33

https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/Documents/Borough_statistics/Population/Mid_2016_Population_Estimates_for_Tower_Hamlets.pdf
https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/Documents/Borough_statistics/Population/Mid_2016_Population_Estimates_for_Tower_Hamlets.pdf


 

18 
 

appear to be dependent on EU-born workers and these include the accommodation and 
food service activities sector (79,000 jobs), the construction sector (88,000). A sizeable 
proportion of the workforce in both the NHS and the tech sector are also from EU 
countries, roughly one in ten NHS workers in London and about one third of those in the 
tech industry.21  

  
6.12   Analysis of 2011 Census data shows that in Tower Hamlets the financial, real estate, 

professional and administrative services, distribution, hotel and restaurant services, and 
transport and communications sectors are most reliant on EU migrant workforce.  

 
6.13 Brexit is likely to have an impact on the population of Tower Hamlets not only through 

restrictions on migration but may also change people’s perception of London and the UK 
as an open and welcoming country, in effect making less people wanting to live here. 

 
 

Community Cohesion Impact  
 

6.14  Although the Challenge Session did not plan to focus on the community cohesion impact 
of Brexit at this stage; the submission from the Officers from Corporate Strategy and 
Equality included reference to it.  

 
6.15  It was mentioned in the session that local third sector organisations supporting migrant, 

refugee and asylum seeker communities in the borough reported an increase in hate 
crimes in the period immediately after the vote to leave the EU. Data from the London 
Metropolitan Police showed there was an increase of 136% in the number of reported 
incidents for the period between 23rd June 2016 and 31st July 2016 compared to the 
same period for the previous year. There were 69 reported incidents in June and July 
2015 compared to 163 incidents in June and July 2016.  

 

23rd JUNE 2015 TO 31st JULY 2015 

Category 
Incidents 

2015 

Incidents 

2016 
%  INCREASE 

 Racial & Religious 50 118 +136 

Faith Hate 5 13 +160 

Anti-Semitic 0 2 +200 

Islamophobic 3 11 +266 

Homophobic 9 16 +78 

Transphobic 1 0 -100 

                                            
21

 https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/eu_migration_report_final_2.pdf  

Page 34

https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/eu_migration_report_final_2.pdf


 

19 
 

Disability 1 3 +300 

Total Hate Crime 69 163 +136 

 
 

 
 
 

6.16  The New Residents and Refugees Forum invited feedback and input from migrant 
residents across the borough about their experiences and concerns following the 
referendum.  Key findings included:  

 Feeling less safe or comfortable since the referendum; 

 Some have experienced some levels of abuse including people saying things such 
as ‘your benefits are going to be stop and you will be told to go’; 

 People were very aware of press reports of serious racist incidents and this 
increased their sense of unease and insecurity; 

 Those with EU residence were very anxious about their own situations and had a lot 
of questions about what steps they should take. 

 
 

Recommendation 1:  
The Council should carry out a more detailed migration analysis of the potential impact of 
Brexit on our local population and develop an updated profile of the European Migrant 
community in Tower Hamlets. 
 

 
Recommendation 2:  
The Council should carry out a more detailed equalities analysis of the potential impact of 
Brexit on community cohesion in Tower Hamlets and publicise the ‘No Place for Hate’ 
campaign to reassure and address wellbeing and insecurity issues of EU Nationals. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

546 

632 

851 

June '15 June '16 June '17

Reported hate crimes in Tower Hamlets 

Page 35



 

20 
 

7.0 What impact could Brexit have on the Tower Hamlets workforce? 
 

7.1 Based on the submission from the Human Resources (HR) and brief analysis taken from 
the Brexit research project by ‘Collaborate’; the key impacts could be as follows: 
 

7.2 EU Labour / Workforce 
 

 Potential impacts from Brexit concerns the number of EU nationals who currently work 
directly for the Council, or as agency staff for our suppliers in the health and social 
care services who may leave the UK; 

 Despite the UK Government reaching agreement with the EU to protect and preserve 
the rights of EU citizens living, working and studying in the UK (and vice versa), 
concerns and anxieties remain about their future employment prospects which may 
prove pivotal in whether they choose to remain in the UK; 

 This Council has not yet undertaken detailed information gathering and analysis 
regarding EU nationals within the workforce and our suppliers so we are not yet able 
to determine the full impact or which services may be impacted.  

 Anecdotal data and research suggest that some Council’s rely heavily on EU nationals 
to fill caring and hospitality roles in social care and nursing homes.  In some Local 
Authorities EU nationals make up over 50% of the workforce in ‘low skilled’ jobs in the 
construction and catering sector. 

 
7.3   Suppliers and Contractors 

 

 Skills losses / shortages, e.g. in terms of agency staff or staff working for Council 
suppliers could have impact on contracts already in place and ability to deliver on 
these by providers. 

 Construction Sector - skills shortages, job losses and reduced employment 
opportunities will also impact adversely on the local council, businesses and 
employers within the borough, e.g. financial institutions in Canary Wharf. 

 Financial impact on suppliers and contractors. 
 
 

7.4 What are the challenges? 
 

 The makeup of the Council workforce – potentially more EU nationals leaving the 
country/less coming in – currently insufficient information to make a determination on 
the impact so far or to project future impact. 

 Potential skills losses/shortages and the retention of skilled workers. For example, the 
adult social care workforce has a unique set of skills, but struggles with recruitment 
and retention.  

 Wellbeing issues for all staff, including EU nationals – e.g. a reported rise in hate 
crimes since referendum. 

 Increased demand and competition for ‘talent’ 
 

7.5  What are the Opportunities? 
 

 Other potential sources of labour depending on post-Brexit migration arrangements 
could be available and there may be more opportunities for our local graduates and 
young apprentices and locally trained staff through our various work schemes.   

Page 36



 

21 
 

 Given that Tower Hamlets is still seen as an attractive business destination, new 
businesses may relocate into the borough, bringing different skills and experience and 
different employment opportunities. 

 
7.6 What could the Council do to mitigate the impact? 

 

 Undertake more detailed information gathering and analysis re EU nationals within 
the Council workforce. 

 Ensure positive wellbeing provisions supporting all staff, e.g. EAP in place 

 Publicise ‘No Place for Hate’ campaign. 

 Identify our ‘talent’ and ensure retention strategies in place. 

 Work to become ‘Employer of Choice’ so attract the best talent. 

 Identify any areas where support/guidance can be given by the Council to help and 
support contractors and suppliers 

 Stay up to date on debates around incorporating EU law into UK law as part of the 
Great Repeal Bill 

 Stay informed of potential models for future governance e.g. replacing the 
European Court of Justice etc.  

 Keep abreast of leading/latest thinking from HR and Employment Law specialists. 

 Ensure up to date on latest developments for clarity of impact, which will then 
inform actions. 
 

7.7  Priority areas of contingency planning 
 

 Once the potential impact on the Council workforce is known, identify if there are 
any priority areas that need mitigating action, e.g. where there is a substantial 
impact on any service/roles in particular 

 Ensure talent management and workforce planning are central to the Council’s 
future approach 

 Early communication of any changes and their impacts once known 

 Early planning for any changes so that impact is minimal as can be 

 Identify any impacts that could have a cost to the Council and include in planning 

 Keep abreast of key issues and their impacts and ensure communication channels 
to suppliers and contractors. 

 Once any impacts are known, work with other businesses, suppliers and 
contractors to minimise. 

 
Recommendation 3:  
The Council should identify the specialist skills and the number of EU nationals within its 
workforce and those employed by our key suppliers and ensure retention strategies and 
positive wellbeing provisions are in place. 
 

 
Recommendation 4:  
The Council should commission research to examine the contribution European migrants 
make to the borough’s labour market and the potential impact of Brexit on the Financial & 
Professional Services, construction industry and the borough’s key growth sectors. 

 

Page 37



 

22 
 

8 What impact could Brexit have on the Council’s legal powers and 
responsibilities? 
 

8.1 Based on the submission from the Legal Services and latest analysis taken from Local 
Government Association (LGA) briefings as most of the Council’s statutory powers and 
duties come from domestic legislation, if the UK leaves the EU there will be little change. 
The Localism Act 2011 provides a “catch all” power but also provides the requirement to 
pay sanctions to the EU for breaches of EU Law such as in relation to procurement. This 
may still be effective. 

 
8.2  According to the Legal Representative; “there will be no real effect on the Council’s 

Powers to Act. Tendering is here to stay. There may be small opportunities to assist our 
objectives e.g. speeding up tendering and procurement process and increased local 
expenditure”.  

 
8.3  However, whilst general powers/duties might not be affected, there are likely to specific 

impacts in the following areas: 
 

8.4  Energy efficiency 
  
Local Authorities must manage their buildings and procurement in line with energy 
efficiency rules based on EU law. The basis of these is the 2012 Energy Efficiency 
Directive which is transposed into UK law via a number of pieces of secondary 
legislation. The Directive establishes measures to help the EU reach its 20% energy 
efficiency target by 2020 and places a requirement on public authorities, which includes 
local councils, to ensure they purchase energy efficient buildings, products and services. 
In the past councils have raised concerns that such a requirement places additional costs 
on council procurement activity.  

 
8.5  Waste collection and disposal  

 

 The key piece of EU legislation is the Waste Framework Directive22 which sets out 
key definitions and duties relating to how waste must be collected, transported, 
recovered and disposed of. It also introduced recycling and recovery targets to be 
achieved by 2020. A detailed summary of current waste legislation applicable in 
the UK is set out on the Gov.uk guidance page on waste legislation. The majority 
of EU waste management law has been transposed directly into domestic law 
within the UK. This means that the relevant legislation and requirements on Local 
Authorities will not be automatically or immediately affected by the UK’s exit from 
the EU. 

  

 However, if the UK leaves the EU and does not become a member of the 
European Economic Area (EEA), then the UK Government will be able to amend 
and/or repeal the domestic legislation that gives effect to EU waste legislation. The 

                                            
22

 Difference between EU Regulation and Directive.  
Regulations have binding legal force throughout every Member State and enter into force on a set date in all 
the Member States. Example: Food Information to Consumers Regulation 1169/2011 
Directives lay down certain results that must be achieved but each Member State is free to decide how to 
transpose directives into national laws. Example: Directive 2002/46 on the approximation of the laws of the 
Member States relating to food supplements 

Page 38



 

23 
 

benefits of effective waste management to both the environment and the economy 
may mean that an EU exit will not lead to a substantial change in approach from 
the UK Government, but some commentators have suggested that in this scenario 
it is likely that legislators would repeal or weaken EU requirements (for example, 
recycling targets) with the objective of reducing the regulatory burden on 
businesses. 

 
8.6 This could also manifest in a change in approach to waste collection and disposal 

services for some Local Authorities, particularly if lower cost solutions (such as landfill 
disposal) are permitted with a relaxation of environmental protections and technical 
requirements. Global law firm Norton Rose Fulbright has suggested that Local Authorities 
may push for such changes in order to reduce their costs: there might be greater 
pressure from Local Authorities to move away from the objectives set by the EU Landfill 
Directive; to reduce the landfilling of waste by introducing stringent technical 
requirements for waste and landfills. These EU driven targets have caused local councils 
to incur large fines for missing the landfill reduction levels.  

 
8.7  Trading standards  

 
As with waste directives, most trading standards legislation consists of EU directives 
transposed into domestic law: therefore, this would not be repealed automatically on 
leaving the EU.  

 
8.8  Procurement  

 
Local Council’s must comply with EU public sector procurement rules. The most 
significant requirement is for all public contracts over £209,000 to be published in the 
Official Journal of the European Union (OJEU), thus making them accessible to suppliers 
from across the EU. In the medium term, public procurement rules more generally will 
remain in place as they have been implemented via UK law.  

  
8.9  Employment Law 
 

The Government’s stated intention is to incorporate all EU law into UK law – there is 
potential, however, for changes to be made, e.g. debate over Charter of Fundamental 
Rights. There is uncertainty around transition arrangements and ongoing cases and 
precedents. The risk is that ‘unpopular’ pieces of legislation, such as the Working Time 
Regulations and the Agency Workers Regulations, may be vulnerable to amendment or 
repeal in the longer term. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



 

24 
 

9 What impact could Brexit have on the Council’s Funding and 
Finances? 
 

9.1 Based on the submission from Council Finance and brief analysis taken from the Brexit 
research project by Collaborate; the key impacts could be as follows:  
 
External grant funding 

 

 The Council receives £2.6 million in funding to improve the local economy, 
development, infrastructure, employment and training currently comes from the 
European Union. 

 The EU funding sits in two funds 
1) European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) for research and innovation, 

business enterprise and creating a low carbon economy; 
2) The European Social Fund (ESF) is for investment in skills, social inclusion and 

promoting employment opportunities. Leader funds are supporting rural 
connectivity and small businesses. 
 

 Access to further funding to improve our local economy is a result of match funding 
these grants but continued support is needed to reverse the trend of social 
deprivation as Tower Hamlets has the highest rates of child poverty in the country; 

 EU funding supports the valuable work of Tower Hamlets community groups to 
deliver development projects. Such examples include the support to access 
financial growth for East London SMEs, mobile commerce innovation, green 
printing processes, Women’s Business Innovation Network and a homelessness 
project; 

 The European Social Fund (ESF) Community Employment programme (£1.35m 
over next 3 years, half of it being funded through ESF), while not likely to be 
affected this time, will be wrapped up in the future. The programme helps local 
residents into employment. 

 
 

 Business rates  
 
9.2 Workers and businesses in Tower Hamlets make up the third highest contributor to UK 

tax revenues (£12 billion). 
 

9.3 Restrictions on free movement of labour and access to the European market could 
accelerate the move of financial firms to other European centres like Paris, Frankfurt and 
Amsterdam from Tower Hamlets economic centre, Canary Wharf; impacting on growth, 
jobs, development and enterprise. 

 
9.4 The loss of business rates in particular due to companies moving out of the borough 

could be devastating for the Council's budget. 
 

9.5 The Government plans to scrap local authorities’ Revenue Support Grant by 2020, with 
Local Government collectively retaining 100% of business rates revenue. Local 
Authorities would raise most of their revenue locally. They would become more exposed 
to falls in tax revenue resulting from economic downturns and this maybe a real 
possibility with a hard-Brexit. The difficulty of forecasting may also increase as result of 
this; potentially making long-term financial planning trickier. 

Page 40



 

25 
 

 
9.6 Finance and insurance is by far the largest sector in Tower Hamlets, followed by 

professional services and information and communication. These sectors are key 
economic drivers, and are together with “Tech City” type firms forecasted to grow more 
than other sectors. 

 
9.7 The current business landscape in Tower Hamlets mirrors that of London with 99% of 

businesses being Small and Medium Enterprises (0-249 employees) and 89% of those 
being micro businesses (less than 10 employees). 

 
9.8 Small businesses are particularly sensitive to the uncertainty of the market due to the 

weakening of the Pound, which is bad for a net importer like the UK; buying from 
overseas has been made more expensive. A weak pound that is pushing up inflation 
which, in turn, increases the price of goods. 

 
9.9 This has an impact on small businesses since it means their customers all feel the 

squeeze. Therefore small business in Tower Hamlets may be adversely affected as a 
result of a hard Brexit and this could reduce the business rates collected by the Council. 

 
9.10 If lots of small businesses are squeezed out and shops boarded up in our high streets 

this may negatively impact our town centres and also have the potential to increase crime 
and anti-social behaviour in these areas. 

 
9.11 The level of business investment in the UK is predicted to be around 25% lower by 2019 

relative to its pre-referendum forecasts, effectively damaging future productivity growth. 
In turn, this could affect the number of jobs available and the nature of businesses 
located in TH. 

 
What could the Council do to mitigate the impact? 

 
9.12 The Council will produce a register of all ESF related projects and services in the 

Borough to assess the potential impact of the EU funding loss. Although the Council does 
not hold information about the EU funds that are received by regional and local providers 
but this information is a matter of public record and should be available on the EU 
website.   
 

9.13 The Council will work closely with other Local Authorities and London Councils to co-
ordinate and strengthen the lobbying of Central Government to replace the EU funding 
loss. Although there is no certainty around success of a replacement fund, however 
Councils are grouping together to form joint proposals. London has a particular strong 
approach through the regional London Councils voice and can submit strong arguments 
due to the value of funding it stands to lose.  
 

9.14 The Chair of London Councils and the London Mayor has already written to the Secretary 
of State for Communities and Local Government with a joint London Councils paper on 
proposals around the “UK Shared Prosperity Fund”, (SPF), which is proposed, will 
replace EU funding after Brexit. It makes the case for four requirements of the Fund: 
  
1) London’s share of the UK SPF be fully devolved to London 
2) Allocation of the UK SPF is based on a fair measure of need, not regional Gross 
Value Added. 

Page 41



 

26 
 

3) London to receive at least as much funding as currently via EU programmes.  
4) UK SPF administration is much simplified by comparison with EU programmes.  

 
What are the Opportunities? 
 

9.15 All EU funds are usually tied with Council match funding funds to extend or increase the 
volume of existing programmes of work and the workforce usually expands in the short 
term to accommodate the additional workload. If no alternative funds are available the 
Council will continue to delivery programmes of work within its budgets without the 
additional funding opportunities. This does however mean that the matched funding 
requirements of Council funds can be more freely used for delivery rather than ring-
fenced to particular eligible client groups.  

 
9.16  The Council still has the opportunity to utilise section 106 and CIL funds and can develop 

submissions to alternative additional funding streams from central and regional 
government. The Council can also develop linkages to investment in the locality through 
Corporate Social Responsibility agendas of major businesses locally 

 

 
Recommendation 5:  
a) The Council should produce a finance report which identifies all EU funded projects and 
services that our key partners deliver in Tower Hamlets including regeneration schemes at 
risk of stalling. 
   
b) The Council should work closely with developers and partners to develop mitigation 
strategies to replace lost EU funds for community employment programmes, services and 
regeneration projects. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



 

27 
 

10. The potential impact of Brexit on the Council’s housing, development 
and regeneration schemes: 

 
10.1  According to our Senior Housing and Economic Development Officers submission at the 

Challenge Session; the key impact and challenges of Brexit are likely to be as follows:  

 The decision to leave the EU has prompted warnings across the construction 
industry about the impact of prolonged uncertainty on house prices and the cost of 
borrowing may result in development schemes stalling which may lead to Councils 
such as Tower Hamlets being unable to meet our housing supply targets. 

 Construction is an industry that is highly reliant on migrant labour; between 2007 
and 2014, the proportion of EU migrants in the construction sector rose from 3.65% 
to 7.03%. Limits on free movement could, therefore, have an adverse impact on 
building costs and supply, at least in the short to medium term and make some of 
our regeneration / construction schemes financially unviable due to rising 
construction costs and which could ultimately lead to schemes stalling or being 
scrapped altogether. This may also have the effect of Tower Hamlets being unable 
to meet our housing supply targets. 
 

10.2  Affordable homes  

 Local Authorities play a relatively limited role in adding to the stock of newly built 
affordable homes – the key providers are private developers and housing 
associations. However, authorities with a development programme will want to 
ensure that their plans are sustainable in the current environment.  

 Diminished infrastructure funds, housing loans from the European Investment Bank 
and housing association borrowing abilities will hamper the ability of developers and 
reduce the supply of new affordable homes; 

 
10.3  Access to Council housing  

 Changes to the free movement of EU nationals may impact on their eligibility to 
apply for Local Authority housing and thereby reduce local demands.  

 The most recent statistics on social housing lettings in England released by DCLG 
(October 2015) cover the period April 2014 to March 2015. The bulletin compares 
lettings since 2007/08 with reference to the nationality of the “household reference 
person” (HRP). The vast majority of lettings were made to UK nationals. 

 Based on this data, the impact of EU migration on demand for Council housing is 
limited. Changes to free movement may reduce demand, but much will depend on 
whether UK nationals living in the EU are forced to return.  

 
10.4  What could the Council do to mitigate the impact? 

 A robust research programme to identify European labour volume and the potential 
impact of Brexit on the construction industry and businesses in the borough;  

 Identify early and discourage stalling of regeneration schemes  and establish 
mitigation measures; 

 Work closely with housing industry bodies to explore ways to replace lost EU funds 
for re-generation schemes – such as investment through grants and loans.  

 Increased communications and stakeholder engagement on Brexit;  
 

Recommendation 6:  
The Council should work closely with other Local Authorities and London Councils to co-
ordinate the lobbying of Central Government to replace the EU funding loss. 

Page 43



 

28 
 

11.0 Exploratory discussion on priorities  
 

 In preparing the Council for Brexit what should be our priority areas of 
contingency planning?  
 

11.1  The consensus that came out of the Challenge Session discussion was that the priority 
areas of the Brexit Scrutiny work should be on getting detail assessment and contingency 
plans of the potential impact on the Council core funding and the services that we provide 
for our residents. A focus should be on assessing the impact on the wider local economy, 
businesses and future growth as well as the impact and opportunities on local 
communities. 

 
11.2 The Challenge Session resolved that the Council should consider commissioning an 

independent and robust research programme and produce a local impact report of Brexit 
which includes a detailed analysis of each of our core services and operations and takes 
into account equalities impact assessment. 
 

11.3 As such the scrutiny work programme looking at the impact of Brexit should be split into 
three areas: 

1) Impact on the Council, core funding and services for residents 
2) Impact on the local economy and development and growth 
3) Impact and opportunities for local communities 

 
11.4 The main suggestion that came from the discussion was that the consultation with local 

community groups, residents and businesses regarding mitigating the impact of Brexit 
needs to be carefully planned, community facing and publicly accessible. 
 

11.5 Whilst it’s important to have open and frank discussion about Brexit with residents and 
local business, we should not be alarmist in our approach or just focus on the potential 
negative impacts.  

 
What should be the scrutiny milestones and the process by which we can maintain 
a regular and meaningful oversight of the Council’s Brexit mitigation plans? 
 

11.6 It was mentioned that the new Overview & Scrutiny Committee (OSC) will be in place in 
June 2018, realistically it is unlikely to get its work programme under way before October 
2018. Brexit is scheduled to take place at the end of March 2019. For an OSC Report on 
Brexit to be of any value it should be finalised in advance of Brexit. Unless the current 
OSC plans this work for the next OSC to undertake, it is unlikely the work will be 
completed in time. 
 

11.7 The Challenge Session resolved that the formation and timetabling of the Brexit Scrutiny 
Full Review should be done as soon as possible to ensure a coherent and manageable 
work programme and to avoid diary clashes. 
 
How do we ensure cross party support, input and involvement? 
 

11.8 Challenge Session members raised the concern that given we do not know the 
complexion of the new OSC following the local election; it is important we secure cross 
party support for what is proposed now.   
 

Page 44



 

29 
 

11.9 The suggestion was the Brexit Scrutiny Lead Member should pull together a small cross-
party group of OSC members to agree the Brexit Scrutiny programme for after the 
election. The Lead Member will need officer support to plan this and put together a 
detailed Scoping Paper setting out key objectives and focus (key lines of enquiries). 

 
11.10 The following Members have been approached and they have agreed to be part of the 

OSC Brexit Scrutiny committee to help set up the Brexit Scrutiny Full Review for the new 
municipal year: 

 

 Cllr Ayas Miah (Labour) 

 Cllr Muhammad Mustaquim (Independent Group) 

 Cllr Rabina Khan (People’s Alliance) 

 Cllr Andrew Wood (Conservative) 

 Cllr Andrew Cregan (Liberal Democrat) 

 Three Co-opted OSC Members 
 
11.11 The proposals and draft Scoping Paper for the Brexit Scrutiny Full Review has been 

attached to the appendix of this report. 
 

11.12 The draft Scoping Paper will need to be brought back to OSC for sign off no later than 
the March 2018 OSC meeting. This will involve our agreeing the subject areas, those 
who will be asked to provide evidence, the date and locations for sessions, etc. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



 

30 
 

12. Conclusion and Next Steps 

 
12.1  The aim of this Brexit Challenge Session was to obtain an overview of the Local 

Authorities understanding of the likely impact of Brexit. It was recognised and 
appreciated by all who attended, that this was just the start of the conversations on the 
impact and the beginning of exploratory discussions on the Council’s resilience planning 
and to recommend key priorities for mitigation planning. 

 
12.2  Due to limited time and resources the Challenge Session was deliberately very focused 

on a narrow set of issues. Going forward Scrutiny will need to have further sessions to 
devote more detailed and specific discussion to the impact of Brexit on the borough.   

 
12.3 This Challenge Session highlighted very clearly that there is a lot of uncertainty 

nationally and it is still not clear what kind of Brexit the country face. Until we have the 
full and final agreed Brexit agreement in place, it will be difficult to determine the exact 
impact. 
 

12.4 Despite this the Council needs to be fully prepared for all eventualities (including a “no 
deal Brexit”) and constantly keep abreast of all key Brexit developments, by identifying 
and reviewing areas of potential impact. 
 
Next Steps  
 

12.5 The Council should consider commissioning independent and robust research 
programmes and produce a local impact report of Brexit which includes a detailed 
analysis of each of our core services and operations and takes into account equalities 
impact assessment. 

 
12.6 Based on these detailed research reports the Council should develop a high level 

Contingency Plan to protect our revenue streams, workforce, local regeneration, 
infrastructure projects and community cohesion priorities. 

 
12.7 Brexit should feature in our Community Plan and all our strategic and risk management 

plans going forward. This will allow for regular strategic monitoring and management 
oversight. 

 
12.8 The formation and timetabling of the Brexit Scrutiny Full Review should be done as 

soon as possible to ensure a coherent and manageable work programme and to avoid 
diary clashes. 

 
12.9 The Council should proactively seek out and respond to all direct and indirect 

opportunities for Tower Hamlets Council to communicate and represent Tower Hamlets 
interests in the Brexit process. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 46



 

31 
 

 

Recommendation 7: 
The 2018/19 Overview & Scrutiny Committee should carry out a full Brexit Scrutiny Review 
to obtain detailed assessment and better understanding of the progress of Brexit and its 
implications for the borough including a focus on: 
1) Impact on the Council, core funding and services for residents; 
2) Challenges and opportunities for local economy;  
3) Community Cohesion. 
 

 

Recommendation 8:  
The Community Plan and all our strategic and risk management plans should reference 
Brexit. 
 

 
Recommendation 9:  
The Council should proactively seek out and respond to all direct and indirect opportunities 
to communicate and represent the Tower Hamlets interests in the Brexit process. 
 

 
Recommendation 10:  
The Council should develop policies and targeted marketing strategies to promote the 
Borough to retain and attract business and enable the future economic growth. 
 

 
 
                                            
i Office for National Statistics, 2016 Mid-year Population Estimates. See table MYE2. This estimate 

includes all residents who are expected to live in the borough for at least 12 months, including 

migrants and term-time students. This estimate does not include short-term visitors or migrants who 

may live in the borough for less than a year. 

Page 47

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/bulletins/annualmidyearpopulationestimates/latest


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

1 
 

Brexit Scrutiny Review for 2018/19  
Draft Scoping Document 

 
Name of Scrutiny 
Work 

Impact of Brexit on Tower Hamlets  

Context and 
background 

Brexit Challenge Session 
As part of his work programme for 2017/18, the Scrutiny Lead for Governance, 
Councillor Ayas Miah undertook a Scrutiny Challenge Session focused on the potential 
impact of Brexit on the Council. There were a total of 10 recommendations that were 
agreed at the Challenge Session. 
 
The challenge session offered the opportunity to begin exploratory discussions on the 
Council’s resilience planning and to recommend key priorities for mitigation planning. 
Due to uncertainty around Brexit negotiation, limited time, resources and scope, the 
Challenge Session was not able to discuss the impact of Brexit on Tower Hamlets as a 
place, such as our economic stability and community cohesion. 
 
Therefore one of the key recommendations was for the 2018/19 Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee to continue the Brexit Scrutiny work into the new municipal year and:  

 Provide officers with sufficient information to allow them to organise a full Brexit 
Scrutiny Review and agree focus of further evidence sessions; 

 Support and equip the new Overview and Scrutiny Committee to obtain further 
assessment of the progress of Brexit and consider its implications for the 
Council, Partners and our wider community; 

 Complete the Brexit Scrutiny work on time and produce report with clear 
recommendations for the Council and Partners to consider. 

 

Main aims and 
objectives the Brexit 
Scrutiny Review  
 

 Obtain detailed assessment and better understanding of the progress of Brexit and 
its implications for the borough; 

 Successfully engage all stakeholders in discussions and consultation on Brexit; 

 Review local risk management plans and available impact reports based on the 
different Brexit scenarios and take into account the equalities impact assessment;  

 Consider how statutory partners, local businesses, residents and community 
groups can work together to minimise impact on the borough;  

 Explore potential benefits and opportunities for the borough post-Brexit and 
consider the development of new policies and programmes for education and skills 
and development of the local economy.  

 

Proposed 
completion date 

Evidence gathering sessions: July – October 2018  
Draft report: November 2018  

Desired outcome  Develop collective understanding of the potential impact of Brexit on the different 
sectors in the borough and consider mitigation plans. 

 Support the Tower Hamlets Partnership to develop a high level Contingency Plans 
that identifies key risks to our borough.  
 

What will not be 
included 

 The review will not consider detailed assessment or discussion about the final 
Brexit arrangements including the UK’s future trade relationship with the EU. 
 

Risks (mitigation)  Limited time and resources could result in evidence sessions not being completed 
on time and unable to capture information and feedback from key witnesses 
accurately could result in skewed feedback and understanding of the Brexit impact.  

 Local Business / Industry / Growth Sector leads may not get involved with the 
review or unwilling to share their impact studies. 

Page 49



 
 

2 
 

 Lack of knowledge and political consensus could result in Members not fully 
involved with the scrutiny review. 

Mitigations: 

 The Brexit Scrutiny evidence sessions will be carefully planned to allow sufficient 
time to discuss all the relevant issues and the dates, time and the focus of each of 
the sessions will be communicate to partners and key stakeholders well in advance 
to ensure good attendance and buy-in. 

 All the evidence sessions will be held at local venues most accessible to key 
partners /stakeholders and there will be dedicated Officer Support available at each 
of the sessions in order to ensure the information and discussions are recorded 
accurately. 

 The Brexit Scrutiny Review work will be publicised through Members Bulletin, 
Council and Partners website and other key communication / social media 
channels to provide better awareness and understanding. Preliminary discussions 
with cross-party Members have already taken place and will continue going forward 
in order to ensure political consensus. 

 Officers will liaise with local Business Forums / Trade Bodies early to enlist their 
support in engaging and publicising the Scrutiny Review work with local businesses 
and key Growth Sector leads and encourage them to share their impact studies. 

 

Equality & Diversity 
considerations 

 The review will look to explore ways to promote diversity and community cohesion 
as well as consider appropriate and specific support that could be offered to EU 
migrants and residents. 

 The review will consider potential impact on different equalities groups and how the 
borough can mitigate these impacts.  

Membership and 
possible  
co-options 

The composition of the Brexit Scrutiny Review group will reflect the political balance of 
the Council and co-optees after the local elections.   

Key Stakeholders/ 
 Consultees  
 

 Mayor / Local Councillors, Chief Executives and Senior Officers 

 Residents / Local Equalities Forums  

 Local Community Organisations and Business Reps 

 Metropolitan Police Service 

 NHS 

 Housing providers  
 

Cabinet Member(s) TBC  (after local elections 2018) 
 

Research needed / 
Evidence available 

 Central Government / GLA / DCLG Policy Briefings. 

 LGA / LGC / GLA research reports and briefing papers on Brexit. 

 Submissions from key internal (LBTH) services, partners and service providers.  

 Independent research. 

 
Proposed Scrutiny Review activities and Time Table 

Impact of Brexit on the Council, statutory and local partners (Evidence Session 1) 
 
Key questions to explore and address: 

 What could be the short term, mid-term and long term impact of Brexit on local statutory 
organisations? 

 In preparing for Brexit what should be our priority areas of contingency planning and how do 
we ensure that this is effectively communicated to all our stakeholders?  

 How should statutory organisations best communicate and represent the interests of Tower 
Hamlets in the Brexit process? 

 
Key witnesses to invite: 

Proposed 
date: 
July 2018 
 
 
 
Proposed 
Venue:  
LBTH Town 
Hall or 
Partner 

Page 50



 
 

3 
 

 Senior Officers / local experts 

 Cabinet members 

 Statutory Partners and Service Providers 

organisation 
venue  

Impact of Brexit on big businesses and key sectors of the local economy (Evidence 
Session 2) 
 
Key questions to explore and address:  

 What could be the short term, mid-term and long term impact of Brexit on big businesses and 
key growth and employment sectors in the Borough? 

 How can we support productivity and competitiveness challenges among local firms, enabling 
them to compete internationally? 

 What specific mitigation activities, policies and marketing strategies can be developed to 
promote the Borough in order to retain and attract skills, businesses and enable the future 
economic growth? 

 
Key witnesses to invite: 

 Big businesses and industry’s  

 Local planners and developers 

 Employment and skills providers 

 Financial Institutions 

Proposed 
date: 
September 
2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Proposed 
Venue: 
Canary 
Wharf 

Impact of Brexit on small to medium size businesses and enterprises (SME’s) 
(Evidence Session 3) 
 
Key questions to explore and address: 

 What could be the short term, mid-term and long term impact of Brexit on SME’s, labour 
market, residential and business property market in Tower Hamlets? 

 What specific mitigation activities, policies and marketing strategies can be developed to 
support small businesses and enable the future economic growth? 

 
Key witnesses to invite: 

 Small to medium size businesses  and local enterprises 

 Trade associations / Local Business Forums 

Proposed 
date: 
October 
2018 
 
 
Proposed 
Venue: 
Local 
Business 
Forum / 
Centre 

Impact of Brexit on Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) organisations and the wider 
community (Evidence Session 4) 
 
Key questions to explore and address: 

 What could be the impact of Brexit on the local voluntary and community sector and local 
communities living in the borough? 

 How can the partners develop a shared support system to provide dedicated help and 
information to residents and VCS? 

 What more could the Council and our partners do to promote integration and community 
cohesion that can reassure and support the wellbeing of EU Nationals living in the borough? 

 
Key witnesses to invite: 

 Community Safety Officers and Police 

 Residents / Community Leaders 

 VCS Organisations / TH Partnership 

 Equalities Advocacy Groups 

Proposed 
date: 
Late 
October 
2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Proposed 
Venue: 
Local VCS 
Centre 
 
 

Publicity / 
Communications 

Communications should include Members’ Bulletin and articles in Our East End, Council 
website, intranet and social media platforms. 

Links to Strategic/ 
Mayoral Priorities 

 Creating opportunity by supporting aspiration and tackling poverty. 

 Creating and maintaining a vibrant and successful place. 

 Working smarter together as one team with our partners and community. 
 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST
	9 Brexit impact on the Council Scrutiny Challenge Report
	Brexit Challenge Session_Full Report 2017.Appendix 1
	Brexit Scrutiny Review_Scoping Paper_ Appendix 2


